NEHA BOTHRA & CO.

(Chartered Accountants)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF CYGNET INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Report on the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Cygnet Industries
Limited (“the Company"), which comprises the Balance Sheel as al March 31, 2024, the
Stalement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow
Statement and the Stalement of Changes in Equily for the vear ended Mareh 41, 202, and
material accounting policies and other explanatory informalion.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according Lo the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid standalone financial slatements give the information required by the
Companics Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with Lhe accounting principles generally aceepled in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024 and ils loss (including other com prehensive
income), its cash flows and changes in cquity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2014,
Qur responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our
reporl. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the (ode of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India logether with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements undor the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other
cthical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics, We
believe that the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial stalements,

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s
Report thercon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information compriscs the informalion included in the
Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexure to Board’s
Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Sharcholder’s
Information, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon.
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Our opinion on the standalone finaneial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial stalements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
malerially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears 1o be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information: we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Finan cial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparalion of these
standalone financial statements to give a true and fair view of the finaneial position,
financial performance including Other Comprehensive Income, cash flows and Changes
in Equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards(Ind AS) specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015, as
amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequalce acconnting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the standalone financial statements that give a Lrue and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so,

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial
reporting process.
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Audilor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Iinancial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due Lo
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influenee the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether duc to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentionzal omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.
Under seetion 143(3)(i) of the Aet, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls syslem
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* livaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimales and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify onr opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

« [Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone
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financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements
that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the cconomic decisions of
reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of gur
audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) Lo evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other mallers,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters thal may reasonably be thought o bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related saleguards.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirement
1. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b)  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have heen kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss 1ncluding Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in
Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the
Indian Accounting Standards specified under Seetion 133 of the Act, read with Rule
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rule, 2014.

(e)  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

()  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over finaneial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separale report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinicn
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on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial
controls over financial reporting,

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our knowledge and belief and according
to the information and explanations given 1o us:

(i)  The Company has disclosed the impact, if any, of pending litigations as at
March 31, 2024 on ils financial position in its standalone financial
statements — Refer Note 2g.

(i)  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts as al March 31, 2024,

(i11) There were ne amounts which were required to be lransferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Com pany during the period
ended March 31, 2024

(iv)  a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief other than as disclosed in the notes to accounts, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested by the Company Lo or in any other persons
or enlities, including foreign entities, with the understanding whether
recorded in writing or otherwise , that the intermediary shall , whether
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner by or behalf of the Company (Ultimale beneficiaries) or provide
any guarantees , security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

b. The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledgce and
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have
been received by the Company from any persons or entitics, ncluding
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, dircelly
or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entilies identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“"Ullimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantce, seeurity or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

¢. Based on such audit procedures that the we have considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances; nothing has come to our notice that
has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and
(b) eontain any material mis-statement.

(v)  The Company has not declared any dividend during the Year, so reporting

under this clause for compliance with seetion 123 of the Companies Act,
2013, is not applicable.

10 LORD SINHA ROAD, KOLKATA- 700071




NEHA BOTHRA & CO.

(Chartered Accountants)

(vi)  Bascd on our examination which included test checks, the company has nsed
an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operaled
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software.
Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across an y instance
of audit trail feature being tampered with.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020, issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act
(hereinafter referred to as the "Order"), and on the basis of such checks of the
books and records of the Company as we considered a ppropriate and according to
the information and explanations given to us, we give in the "Annexure B” a
statement on the matters speeified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

3. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Repaort under section
197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our epinion and according to the best of our information and explanation given
to us, the remuneration paid by the company Lo its direclors during the current
year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act.

FFor Neha Bothra & Company
Chartered Accountants
FR No.326928E

KOLKATA N.Bofus
FRNo. 326938E Neha Bothra

Kolkala
Date: 084 April, 2024

Partner
Mem No— 067036
UDIN: 24067036 BKC/ZAI6494
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Annexure A to Independent Auditors' Report

Referred to in paragraph 1(f) of the Independent Auditors' Report of even date to the
members of Cygnet Industries Limited on the standalone financial statements [or the vear
ended March 31, 2024.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Aet, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over f{inancial reporting of Cygnet
Industries Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the period ended on that
date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Conlrols over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAT). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequale
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be preseribed under section
143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAL Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such conltrols operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
1
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effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting ineluded
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over linancial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 1o fraud or error.

We believe that the audil evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 1o
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial eontrols system
over financial reporting,.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Finanecial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over finaneial reporling is a process designed Lo
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepled accounting prineiples. A company's internal financial contral over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records Lhat, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Re porting

Becausce of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over finaneial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstalements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or thal the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according lo the explanations given Lo
us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial conlrols
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartercd Accountants of
India.

For Neha Bothra & Company
Chartered Aceountants
FR No.326938L

N Bo $1

Neha Bothra

Partner

Mem No — 067036

UDIN: 24067036 BKCZA16494

Kolkata
Date: 08 April 2024

9|1
10 LORD SINHA ROAD, KOLKATA- 700071



NEHA BOTHRA & CO.

(Chartered Accountants)

Annexure B to Independent Auditors' Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of
Cygnet Industries Limited of even date.)

1. Inrespect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Liquipment:

(2) (A) The Company has maintained proper reccords showing full
particulars, including quantitative details and situation, of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full
particulars of Intangible assets.

(b)  According to the information and explanation given to us and on the
basis of our examination of the records of the company, Lhe Company
has a regular programme of physical verification of its property, plant
and equipment and right of use assets under which the assels are
physically verified in a phased manner over a period of three Vears,
which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard 10 the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. However, no physiecal
verification was carried out by the management of the Company
during the year, and we are therefore unable lo comment on the
discrepancies, if any, which could have arisen on such verification.

(¢)  According to the information and explanations given to us and records
examined by us the title deeds of immovable properties (other than
properties where the company is the lessee and the lease agreement
are duly executed in favor of the lessee), as disclosed in Note -3 on
Property, Plant and Equipment to the standalone financial statements
are held in the name of the Company, except for:

Deseription | Gross Held in the Name | Whether | Period held- | Reason for
of Property | Carrying | of Promoter, Indicate not being |
value | director or | range where | held in
(Rs. In their appropriate | name of
. lacs) relative company®
emplovee Not
Disputed
Freehold 13,660.27 | Kesoram Industries Promoter 710 8 Years It is held in
Land and and Cotton Mills the name of
Building at Limited (now Holding
Kuntighat Kesoram Industrics company
(50 cases) Limited, Holding !
. Company) - e g
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| Leasehold 234.92 | Kesoram Industries | Promoter ~ T7108 Years ‘ Itisheld in
Land (1 Case) | and Cotlon Millg | the name of
Limiled (now | Tlolding,
Kesoram Industrics ' company
Limited, Holding | ‘
i Company) R | |

(d)  According to the information and explanations given to us and records
examined by us there has been no revaluation of Property, Plant and
Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both
during the year.

(e)  According lo the information and explanations given to us and records
examined by us there are no proceedings initiated or pending against
the company for holding any Benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988(45 of 1988) and rules made
thereunder and hence, reporting under this clause is not applicable to
the company.

. Inrespecet of the Company’s Inventory and working capital;

a) 'The inventories, except for goods-in-transit and stock lving with
third parties, were physically verified by the management  at
reasonable intervals during the year. In our opinion and based on the
information and explanation given to us, the coverage and procedure
of such verification by Management is appropriate having regard to
the size of the Company and nature of its operations. For stocks held
with third parties at the vear-end, written confirmations have been
obtained and in respect of goods in transit, the goods have been
reccived subsequent to the year-end or confirmations have been
obtained from the parties. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the
aggregale [or each class of inventories were noticed on such physical
verification of invenlories/aliernate procedures performed  as
applicable, when compared with books of accounts.

b) As per the information’s and explanations given to us by the
management there has been no sanction of working eapital limits in
excess of 5 crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial
institutions on the basis of sccurity of current assets; hence reporting
under this clause is not applicable to the company.
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. (a) The company has provided loans during the year and the outstanding

balance of loans as at march 31, 2024 are given below:

HEJ Ag};regate amr)u@raﬂféd)pmviricd cluring ]
the year

e Others
(B)Balance dutslan(iin_g as at balance sheet date in
respect of above cases:

o Others "_"\ Nil

| Rs. 625.00 lakhs

(b) The terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of
loans and guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the company’s interest;

(¢) As per the information and explanations given to us and books examined by us
m respect of loans and advances in Lhe nature of loans, the schedule ol repavment
of principal and payment of interest has not been stipulated and in the absence
of such schedule, we are unable to comment on the regularity of the repayments

of principal amounts and payment of interest. (Refer Clause f).

(d) As per the information and explanation given to us by the management, there is
no amount receivable in respect of loan granted and interest on such loan as at
balance sheet date; hence reporting under this elause is not applicable to the

compary.

(¢) As per the information and explanation given to us by the management and books
examined by us there has not been any loan or advance in the nature of loan
granted which has fallen due during the year, has been renewed or extended or
fresh loans granted to settle the over-dues of existing loans given to the same

parties.

(f) The company has granted loans which are repayable on demand details of which

are given below:

| Promoters
(in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars All Parties including
Related Party

| (in Rs. Lakhs)

Aggregate amounts of loans

repayable on demand * 625.00 Nil

e ——— e

100% 0%
in nature of loans to the total

loans.

*The amounts reported are the amount of loan granted during the year,
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iv.

Y.

vi.

In our opinion, and according to the information and cxplanations given
Lo us, the Company has nol granted any loans or provided any guarantees
or securily in respect of any loans to any party covered under Section 185
of the Act, however provisions of scetion 186 of the Act in respect of loans
granted to other body corporate have been duly complied with.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not accepted any deposits or amount which are deemed to be deposit. Hence,
reporting under clause (v) of the order is not applicable.

Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the
Company is required to maintain cost records as specified under Section
148(1) of the Act in respect of its products. We have broadly reviewed the
same, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the preseribed account and
records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a
detailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether they
are accurate or complete.

According Lo the information and explanations given lo ns in respeet ol
statutory dues:

(a) Amounts deducted or accrued in the books of account in respecet of
undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service tax (GST),
Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Duty of
Customs, Cess and other material statutory dues have generally been
regularly deposited with appropriate authoritics.

No undisputed amounts payable in respect of GST, Provident fund,
Employees” State Insurance, Income-tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and
other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March, 2024 fora
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) Details of statutory dues referred to in in sub clause (a) above which
have nol been deposited as on March 31, 2024 on account of disputes
are given below;

-

ol
lixcise

Nature of the  Nalure of dues | Amount Period to | Forum where the
statute (is. In Lakhs) which the | dispute is pending
amount
Central Excise Act, | Central Excise 1.16 ! September | Commissioner
1944 2015- Central
June 2016 | (Appeals- 11)
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KARNATAKA VAT 5.06 2017-18 | Asst. Commissioner of |

Value Added Tax Commercial Tux

Act, 2003 (Karnataka VAT

Department)

West Bengal Value | West Bengal tax 153.92 April 2016- | Caleutta High Court -;

Added Tax Act, | onentry of goods June 2017 '

2003 into local areas ‘
Actl,2012 |-

viii, According to the information and explanation given to us and the records

examined by us, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any
transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of accounl, in
the tax assessment under the Income-tax Act, 1961 as income during the
year.

ix. (a) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the
information and explanation given to us, the Company has not defanlted in
repayment of loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon Lo
any lender as at the Balance Sheel date.

(b) The company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or
finaneial institution or other lender.,

(¢) In our epinion and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the company has utilized the money obtained by way of term loans
during the year for the purposes for which they were obtained.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an
overall examination of the financial statements of the company we report
that no funds raised on short term basis have been used for long term
investment by the Company.

(€) According to the information and explanations given Lo us and on an
overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report
that the company has not formed any subsidiaries, associates or joint
ventures and hence reporting under clause ix(e) of CARO 2020 is not
applicable lo the company

(f} The company has not formed any subsidiaries, associates or joint
ventures and hence reporting under clause ix(f) of CARO 2020 is not
applicable to the company.

% (2) According to the information and explanation given to us, no money has
been raised by way of Initial Public Offer or Further Public Offer (including
debt instrument) and term loans have been applied for the purposes lor
which they were obtained.
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(b) During the year the company has not made an y preferential allotment or
private placement for shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and
hence reporting under clause [x(b)| of CARO 2090 is not applicable (o the
company.

T, (a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the
Company carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing
practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given
lo us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported
during the period, nor have we been informed of any such case by the
management.

(b) We have not filed any report under sub section (12) of section 143 of the
companies Act in Form ADT-4 and hence reporting under elause [xi(b)] of
CARO 2020 is not applicable to the company.

(¢) As per the information and explanation given to us by the company there
are no whistle blower complaints received during the year.

Xil. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii)
of the Order is not applicable.

xiii.  In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given Lo us
the company is in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act,
2013, where applicable, for all transaction with the related parties and the
details of related party transaction have been disclosed in the financial
statement as required by the applicable standards.

Xiv. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given
to us the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size
and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reporis issued to the company
during the year and covering the period up to 315 March, 2024.

xv.  The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
directors or persons connected with them and hence provisions of Section
192 of the Companies Act are not applicable.

xvi.  The Company is not required to be registered under scetion 45-TA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause (xvi)(a), (b),
(¢) and (d) of the Order is not applicable.
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(Chartered Accountants)

xvii.  According to the books examined by us, the Company has incurred cash
losses during the immediately preceding financial year and current financial
year. The caleulation is as follows: -

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23

| (Rs.in Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)
Net Cash Losses (4599.85) ‘ (5765.18)

xviil.  There has been no resignation of Statutory Auditors during the vear, and
hence reporting under Clause (xviii) of the Order, is not applicable to the
Company.

xix.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilitics, other information accompanying the
(inancial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which
causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the
audit report that the company is not capable of meeting its liabilitics existing
at the date of balance sheel as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilitics falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the company as and when they fall due.

xx.  The Company has incurred losses in the immediately preceding three
financial years and hence no amount is required to be spent by the Company
under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act.

For Neba Bothra & Company
Chartered Aceountants
FRNo. 3269381

KOLKATA N Gotlwe

FRNo. 326936F

Ncha Bothra

Partner

Mem No — 0670536
UDIN:24067036BKCZAL6494

Kolkata
Date: 8 April, 2024
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Cygnet Industries Limited

Notes forming part of financial statements

1.

Company Information

Cygnet Industries Limited ("the Company™) is a public company domiciled in India and
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company was incorporated on
15th June, 2015. The Company is primarily engaged in the business of manufacturing Rayon,
Transparent paper and Chemicals at Kuntighat, District Hooghly, West Bengal with registered
office at Kolkata, West Bengal.

The financial statements as at 31t March, 2024 present the financial position of the Company.

The financial statements for the year ended 31% March, 2024 were approved by the Board of
Directors and authorized for issue on 8hApril 2024.

Material accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparation

(i) Compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. The financial
statements have also been prepared in accordance with the relevant presentation requirements
of the Companies Act, 2013.

(i) Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention with the
exception of certain assets and liabilities that are required to be carried at fair values by Ind AS.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liahility in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

2.2 Property, plant and equipment

a) Property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises of purchase cost, borrowing
costs if capitalization criteria are met and other directly attributable cost of bringing the assets
to its working condition for intended use. The cost also comprises of exchange differences
arising on translation / settlement of long term foreign currency monetary items pertaining
to acquisition of such depreciable asset. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in
arriving at the purchase price.

b) Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant & equipment is added to its
carrying amount only if it increases the future benefits from the existing assets beyond its
previously assessed standard of performance.




¢) Capital work in progress is stated at cost (including borrowing cost. where applicahle and
adjustment for exchange difference referred on Note 2.13 below) incurred  during
construction/installation period relating to items or projects in progross.

d) Losses arising from the retirement of and gains or lasses arising (rom disposal of property,
plant and equipment which are carried at cost are recognized in the Statement of profit and
loss.

e) Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Deprecialion is caleulated using the straight-line method Lo allocate their cosl, net of their
residual values, over their estimated useful lives ag follows:

Class of assets Estimated useful life (in years)

Buildings 3 lo 60 Years
Plant and Equipment 51040 Years
Furniture and Fixtures | 31010 Years -
| Office Ec[tﬁﬁléhi 310 10 Years o .

|' Vehicles 8 Years |

The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the
asset's useful life or over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease lerm if there is no
reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain ownership at the end of the lease term.

2.3 Inlangible assels

Intangible property, plant and equipment are capitalized where it is expected to provide future

enduring cconomic benefits and amortized on a straight line basis. Capitalization costs include

license fees and the cost of implementation/ system integration services. The Costs are

capilalized in the year in which the relevant intangible asset is implemented for usc.

Estimated useful life (in vears)
3 Years

Class of assets
Software

2.4 Impairment

Property, plant and equipment are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumslances indicate that the carrving amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognized for the amount by which the assel's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. lFor the purposes of assessing impairment, assels are grouped al Lhe lowesl levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which arc largely independent of the
cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial asscls
that suffered an impairmenl are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of
cach reporling period.




2.5 Lease

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company has adopted Ind AS 116 - Leases using Lhe modified
retrospective method. Under modificd retrospective approach, the Company has recorded
lease liability at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted at the
incremental borrowing rate and the right of use assel al an amount equal to the lease Hability,
adjusted by the amount ol any prepaid or accerued lease paymenls related to that lease
recognized under Ind AS 17. The weighted average incremental borrowi ng rate for leases
mitially recognized upon the first-time application of Ind AS 116 was 11.89%. The Company
applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics.

The Company, as a lessee, recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for its leasing
arrangements, il the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified assel. The
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, if it involves the use of an
identified asset and the Company has substantially all of the cconomic benefits [rom use of the
assel and has right to direet the use of the identified asset. The cost of the right-of-use asset
shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any
lease payments made al or before the commencement date plus any initial direct costs
incurred. The right-of-use asscts is subscquently measured at cosl less any accumulated
depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any re-measurement of
the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from
the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or usclul lile of right-ol-use assel,

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease piayments that are
not paid at the commencement date of the lease. The lease paviments are diseounted using the
mterest rale implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined, [T thatl rate eannol be
readily determined, the Company uses incremental barrowing rate. For short-lerm and low
value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expensc on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. When the lease liability is re-measured due to change in contract
terms, a corresponding change is made to the carrying amount of right-of-usc asset, or is
recorded in the profit and loss account if the carrying amount of right-of-use asset is reduced
to zero.

Lease under which the Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
arc classified as finance lease. Such assets acquired are capitalized at fair value of the asset or
present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease, whichever is lower.
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are nol transferred
to the Company as lessee are classified as operating leases. Pavments made under operating
leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease unless the pavments are structured Lo inerease in line

with expected general inflation Lo compensate for Lhe lessor's expected in flalionary cost
INCreases.

KOLKATA
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As a lessor:

In respect of assets given on operating lease, the lease rental income is reeognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the leage term unless the receipls are
structured Lo increase in line with expected general inflation to compensale for the expected
inflationary eost increases. There is no change in accounting as a lessor due ta adoplion of Ind
AS 116 Leases.

2.6 Inventories

Inventories are stated at lower of cost and net realizable value, Cost is determined un weighted
average / first-in, first-oul (FIFO) basis, as considered appropriate by the Company, The cosl
of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, dircct labor, other direct eosts
and related production overheads. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs necessary lo make the sale. Provision is
made for obsolete/slow moving/defcctive stocks, wherever necessary.

2.7 Financial Instruments

Financial assels and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a partv o
the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilitics are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and finaneial Habililies (other than finaneial assets and financial
liabilitics at fair value through profit and loss) are added 1o or deducted from the fair value
measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability. The transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit and loss arc immediately recognized in the statement of profil and loss

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of caleulating the amortized cost of a financial
instrument and of allocating interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future cash receipls or payments through the
expected life of the financial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

(a) Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, demand deposits with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. Bank overdratts are

shown within borrowings in current liabilitics in the balance sheel.

Other bank balances

Other bank balances include deposils with maturily less than twelve manths but greater than
three months and balances and deposits with banks thal are restricted for withdrawal and
usage.




Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost if these financial assots are held
within a business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order 1o collect contractual
cash flows and the contractual lerms of the {inancial asset give rise on specilied dates Lo cash
flows that are solely payments of prineipal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

Financial assets measured at fair value

Financial assets are measured al *Fair value through other comprehensive ineome’ (FVOC) if
these financial assets are held within a business model whose objective is to hold these assets
in order Lo collect contractual cash flows or Lo sell these financial asscts and the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dales to cash flows that arc solely pavments of
prineipal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The Company in respect of equity investments (other than in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures) which are not held for trading has made an irrevocable election 1o present in other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value of such equity instruments. Such
an election is made by the Company on an instrument by instrument basis at the time of initial
recognition of such equily investments.

Financial asset not measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income is carried at ‘Fair value through Lhe stalement of profit and loss' (FVPL).

Impairment of (inancial assels

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the ‘Expected eredit losses’ (1EC1) assoeiated
wilh its assets earried at amortized cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The Company recognizes
loss allowance for expected eredit losses on financial asset.

or trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS
109 Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognized from
initial recognition of the receivables.

De-recognition of financial assets

The Company de-recognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash {lows
from the asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor relains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and conlinues (o control the ransforred
asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest in the assets and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay.

If the Company rctains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transterred
[inancial asset, the Company conlinues Lo recognize the financial asset and also recognizes u
collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.




(b) Financial liabilities and equitly instruments
Classification as debt or equily

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issucd by the Company are classificed according to
the substance of the contractual arrangements enterced into and the definitions of 4 financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equily instrumenl is any contract thal evidences a residual inlerest in Lhe assets of e
Company after deducting all of its liabilitics. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds
reeeived, net of direet issue costs.

Financial Liabilities

Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and arc
subsequently measured at amortized cost, using the effective interest rate method where the
time value of monsy is significant.

Interest bearing bank loans, overdrafts and issued debt are inil ially measured at fair value and
are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method, Any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of
borrowings is recognized over the term of the borrowings in the statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

The Company de-recognizes financial labilities when, and only when, the Company’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.

Derivalive financial instruments

In the ordinary course of business, the Company uses certain derivative financial instruments
lo reduce business risks which arise from its cxposure lo foreign exchange and interest rate
fluctuations. The instruments are confined principally to forward foreign exehange contracts

Derivalives arc inilially accounted for and measured at fair value from the date the derivative
contract is entered into and arc subsequently re-measured to their tair value at the end of cach
reporting period.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities arc offsel and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet
where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to sellle on a nel basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultancously. The
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in
the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolveney or bankruptey of the
Company or the counlerparly.




2.8 Employee Benefits
Defined contribution plans

Payments to defined contribution plans arc charged as an expense as they fall due. Pavments
made to state managed retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as pavments o defined
contribution schemes where the Company’s abligations under the schemes are equivalent to
those arising in a defined contribution retirement henefit seheme.

Defined benefit plans

For defined benefit retirement schemes the cost of providing benefits is determined using Lthe
Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuarial valuation being carried oul al cach balanee sheet
date. Re-measurement gains and losses of the net defined benofil liability /(assel) are
recognized immediately in other comprehensive income. The service cost and nel luterest on
the net defined benefit liability/(asset) is treated as a net expense within employment costs.

Past service cost is recognized as an expense when the plan amendment or curtailment oceurs
or when any related restructuring costs or termination benefils are recognized, whichever is
carlier.

The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the balance sheet represents Lhe present value
of the defined-benefit obligation as reduced by the fair value plan assets,

Compensaled absences

Accumulated compensated absences which are expected Lo be availed or encashed within
twelve months from the year end are treated as short term employee benefits. The obligation
towards the same is measured at the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as
the additional amount expected to be paid as a result of the unused entitlemenls as al the year
end.

Accumulated compensated absences which are expected to be availed or encashed beyond
twelve months from the year end are treated as other long lerm employee benefits, The
Company's liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the
end of each year, Actuarial loss/gains are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the
year in which they arise.

Short-term Employce Benefits (i.e. benefits payable within one year) are vecognized in the
period in which emplovee services are rendered.

Ind AS 19 - Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement:

The amendment requires an entily to use updated assumptions to determine current service
costs and net interest for the remainder of the period after a plan amendment, curtailment or
settlement, and to recognize in the Statement of Profit and Loss as part of past service cost, or
gain or loss on settlement, any reduction in a surplus, even if that surplus was not previously




recognized because of the impact of the asset ceiling. The adoption of the standard did not have
any material impact to the financial statements.

2.9 Government Grants

Grants from the government are recognized at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the Company will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating Lo income are deferred and recognized in the profit or loss over Lhe
period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended (o compensate and
presenled within other income.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property. plant and equipment are inelnded in
non-current liabilities as deferred income and are credited to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the expected lives of the related assets and presented within other income.

2.10 Provision and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions: Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation as a resull of a past
event and it is probable that an outflow of resourees embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions arc measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate
used Lo determine Lhe present value is a pre-lax rate thal reflecls current markel assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The inerease in the provision
duc to the passage of time is recognized as interest expense.

Conlingent Liabilities: Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible
obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be eonfirmed only by the
oceurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within Lhe
control of the company or a present obligalion thal arises from past events where il is either
not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the
amount cannot be made.

2.11 Taxes on Income

Taxes on income comprises of current taxes and deferred taxes, Current tax in the Statement
of Profit and Loss is provided as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the
period using tax rates and tax laws enacted during the period, together with any adjustment to
tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred Lax is recognized on lemporary differences between the carrving amounts of assels
and liabilities and the amounts used for taxation purposes (tax base), at the tas rates and taa
laws enacled or substantively enacted by the end of the reparting period. Deferred tax assets
are recognized for the future tax consequences to the extent it is probable that [uture taxable
profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilized.




Deferred tax is nol accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affeets neither
accounting profit nor laxable profit (tax loss).

Income lax, in so far as it relates to items disclosed under other comprehensive income or
equity, are disclosed separately under other comprehensive income or equity, as applicable.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is legally enforeeable right to offset
current tax assets and habilities and when the deferred Lax balanees related Lo Uie sanic taxition
authority. Current tax assels and tax liabilitics are offset where the entity has 2 legally
enforecable right 1o offset and intends cither to settle on net basis, or to realize the assel and
settle the liability simullaneously.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternalive Tax (MATY) paid in accordance with the tax
laws in India, which is likely o give fulure economic benetits in the form of availability of set
off againsl [uture income tax liabilily. Accordingly. MAT is recognized as deferred lax assel in
the balance sheet when the asset can be measured reliably and it is probable that the future
economic benefit associated with the asset will be realized.

Ind AS 12 — Income taxes — Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment

The amendment to Appendix C of Ind AS 12 specifies that the amendment is to be applied to
the determination of taxable profit (or loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax eredits
and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over the income tax treatments under Ind AS 12.
According to the appendix, companies need to determine the probability of the relevant tax
authority accepting each tax treatment, or group of tax treatments, that the com panies have
used or plan to use in their income tax filing which has o be considered (o compule the most
likely amount or the expected value of tax treatment when determining taxable profit / loss. tix
bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and the tax rates. The standard permits two
possible methods of transition — (i) Full Retrospective Approach — Under this approach.
Appendix C will be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in
accordance with Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Frrors,
without using hindsight and (ii) Retrospective with cumulative effect of initially applving
Appendix C recognized by adjusting equity on initial application, without adjusting
comparatives. The effective date of for adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C is annual period
beginning on or after April 01, 2019. The company will adopt the standard on April 01, 201y
and has decided to adjusted the cumulative effect of in equity on the date of initial application
ie. April 01, 2019 if any without adjusting comparatives. The adoption of this standard did not
have any material impact to the finaneial statements.

Amendment to Ind AS 12:

The amendment relating to income tax consequences of dividend elarify that an entity shall
recognize the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive
income or equity according to where the entity originally recognized those past transactions or
evenls. The adoption of the standard did not have any material impact to the financial
statements. It is relevant to note that the amendment does not amend situations where the
entity pays a tax on dividend which is effectively a portion of dividends paid to the taxation




authorities on behalf of shareholders. Such amount paid or payable to taxation authorities
continues to be charged to equity as a part of dividend in accordance with Ind AS 12.

2.12  Revenue Recognition

Revenue shall be recognized to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers
in an amount that reflects the consideration 1o which the entity expecets to be entitled in
exchange for those goods and services,

Sales of goods

Sales arce recognized when control of the products has been transferred to the buyer, the buver has
full diseretion over the channel and price to sell and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect
the buyer’s aceeptance of the produets per the terms of the contract and 1o significant uncertainty
exists regarding the amounl of the consideration that will be derived from the sale of goods. 1i
includes exeise duty and excludes value added tax/sales tax/Goods and Service Lax.

Revenue is recognized based on the price specified in the contract, net of the estimated volume
discounts. Accumulated experience is used to estimate and provide for the discounts, using the
expected value method, and revenuc is only recognized to the extent thal it is highly probable that a
significant reversal will not oceur. A contract lizbility is recognized for expected volume discounts
payable Lo customers in relation Lo sales made until the end of the reporting period.

A receivable is recognized when the goods are delivered as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is required before the payment is
due, which are otherwise recorded as contracet assets.

Interest Income

Interest income is acerued on a time proportion basis, by reference to the prineipal oulstanding and

the effeclive interest rate applicable

Dividend Income

Dividend income from investments is recognized when the sharcholder's rights to receive payment
have been established.

Rental Income

Rental income from investment properties and sublelling of properlies is recognized on a time
proportion basis over the term of the relevant leases.

2.13 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing cosls include interest, other costs incurred in connection with borrowing s
exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are
regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost. General and specific borrowing costs direetly
attributable to the acquisition, construetion or production of qualilying asscls, which are assels
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, arc
added Lo the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Premium in the form of fees paid en refinancing of loans are accountod




for as an expense over the life of the loan using effective interest rale method. All other
borrowing costs are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss in the period in which they
are incurred.

2.14 Foreign currency transactions and translations

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements of the Company are presented in Indian rupees (INR]), which is the
functional curreney of the Company and the presentation currency for the financial stalements,

Transactions and balances

‘Iransactions in foreign currency are accounted [or al the exchange rales prevailing on the dale
of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities related to foreign currency transactions
remaining unsettled at the end of the year are translated at year end exchange rates.
Gains/losses arising oul of fluctuations in the exchange rates are recognised in Lhe slatement
of profit and loss in the period in which they arise.

2.15 Research and Development Expenditure

Revenue Expenditure on Rescarch and Development is charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss in the year in which it is ineurred and Capital Expenditure relating to Resecarch and
Development are included in property, plant and equipment.

2.16 Farnings per share

(i) Basic carnings per shore

Basic carnings per share are calculated by dividing:
« 'The profit attributable to owners of the Company
* By the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial vear

(11) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjust the [igures used in the determination of basie carnings per
share to take into aceount:

 The after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares, and

+ The weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equily shares




2.17 Segment reporting

The Company is mainly engaged in the business of manu facturing Rayon, Transparent Paper
and Chemicals. The Company operates in loeal and export segments geographically,

The Company’s organizational strueture and governance processes are designed to support
cifective management of Rayon, Transparent Paper and Chemicals business. The business
results have been reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided o the
Board of Directors, which is the Chief Operating Decision Maker (Refer note 35).

2.18 Use of estimates and critical accounting judgements

2.19

In preparation of the financial statements, the Company makes judgements. estimates and
assumptions aboul the carrying values of assets and liabilitics that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and the associated assumptions are based on historical
expericnce and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual resulls may differ from
these estimates.

The estimales and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimale is revised and future
periods affected.

Significant judgements and estimates relating to the carrying values of assets and liabilitics
include useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assels, impairment of
property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and investments, provision [or cimplovee
benefits and other provisions, recoverability of deferred tax assets, commitments and
contingencies, measurement of lease Habilily and Right 1o Use Asset.

Rounding off

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded ol to e
nearest Lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule T, unless otherwise stated.
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(] ther fimaneial labilities 1t
(1) Prowrsiams 1 Gl
() Eher enrrent liabsilities w Bzl
Tatal current [ 30.343-31 3094105
[Tartal habiliiies 19.063.76 47,7606
Vatal equity arud [ bilities G3ALTAS B, 00654
Mates formdng par of o Goancal stalemeats el

Thie aveammpag g obes oo Tidgral b of Ui Tl stalenenl s,

This &5 the Balanee Sheet refereed inou e cegeset ol even date

Ay
For Neha Bothra & Co. I ﬂ'll ko‘u‘oufr:_ 2 /g O—J\ L/&’

Firm Registration Numbser: 3260338E Khandelwal Saral Priva Patjoshi
Chartered Acepuntants } Divector Direetor
DIN: gryBsag DIN: pfgansmr
N Sofrie D eq-ou_ knmvmaySharma y M}
Deepnk Tmar
Ncha Bothra Sharma harmila Nath
Fartner ivecton \ Dirvetor

Mumbaorship No.: ofroz6 DNN: arngtao

umar Burman
Chief Firangial Officer

Ankita Agarwal
Comyriny Seorvlury

Flace: Kolkata
Date: 08042024



Cygnel Industries Limited
Statement of Profit and Less for the Period ended 515t March, 2024

T Révenue from operations 1 24, Bpgt 4, 44000
i1 Other incume a0 2252493 1,632.47
T Total Income (1-+11) 26,803.39 6,062,551
w Expenses:
(] Cost of material consnmed 21 10,435.79 11.265.14
(5] Purchases of stock-in-trade a1 AR .86
() Power and Fuel 264 615501 8,086.16
[d) Changes in inveniories of finished gonds,work in progress and
stock-in-trade 22 (38.80) (1,513.78)
(] Employee henefit expenses 23 6,641.11 B,008 84
(f) Depreciation and amorlisalion EXpEnse 24 216119 2,006.54
(gl Finanee costs 25 ,074.73 4154.95
(h) Other expenses a6 422581 3.826.52
Total expenses 33.054-37 33.924.23
v Profit/(1oss) before exeeptional items and tax (TT1-IV) (6,761.03) (7,861.72)
VI Exceptional Ttems - -
VIIL Profil/(Loss) helore tax (V4+VT) (0,761.03) (7,861.72)
VITT Tax expense: 27
(1) Current tax charge [/ (credit) - -
[2) Deferred tax / (eredit) - E
Total tax expense - -
Ix Profit/{Loss) for the year (VII-VII) (6,701.03) (7,861.72)
X Other comprehensive income
Ttems thal will not be reclassified lo profit or loss
TRemensurerent of post-employment henefil plans 493.12 (76.80)
Fair value changes of investments in equity shares -
Total other comprel ive i /(loss) 493.12 {76.89)
X1 Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year (TR 4+X) (6,267.91) (7,938.61)
XIT Earnings per share 28
Basic (Rs) [0.73] {0.83)
Dilated [Hs.) (0.73) {0.85)
X Notes forming part of the financial statements 1-41

The accompanying nuotes are an integral part of the finaneial statements,

This 15 the Balance Sheet referrad in our veport of even date.

For Neha Bothra & Co.
Firm Registration Number: 326938E
Chartered Accountants

N Botlva

Neha Bothra
Partner
Membership No.: 0670306

FRNo. 326938E

Place: Kolkata
Irate ; oB.04:2024

[]ﬂlL/\&wf"Qg’_"o

Kashi Prasad Khandelwal
Director
DIN: 0748525

eebak_ kmmmaz Shazma
Decpak Kumar
Sharma
Director
DIN: 02555564 :

sative Officer

[L.w 4
Ankita Agarwal
Company Sceretary

N
/g o
Sarat Priya Patjoshi

Director
DIN: 06620290

Natho

Sharmila Nath
Divector
DIN! 7041921

b

Raj Kumar Burman
Chief Fingnetal Officer




Cygnet Industries Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2024

A. Equity share capital

(All amounts in Rupt.es l.al.hq, un]cqs ntth'WISL stated)

As at 31st March zo22 65_; 69
Changes in equity share capilal 12 (a) -
As al 315t March 2023 92,653.609
Changes in equity share capital 12 {a) -
As al 31s1 March 2024 92,06533.69

ments R&lamed eamings 10ta! uthu' Bty

Balance at o1 April 2023 - (79,532.11) (79,532.11)
Profit for the year - (6,761.0%) (6,761.03)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) - 493.12 49312
Total comprehensive income for the year - (6,267.91) (6.267.91)
Transfer within equity - - -

As at 315t March 2024 - (85,800.02) (85.800.02)

T EVOCT-equity T

angtraments

Balancc at o1 Apul 2022 - (‘?1-.593-50) (71,593 50)
Profit for the yoar - {7,861.72) (7.861.72)
Other eomprehensive income/(expense) - (76.89) (76.89)
Total comprehensive income for the year - (7,938.61) (7.938.61)
Transfer within equity - - -

As at 318t March 2023 - (79.532.11) (79.532.11)

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in eonjunction with the accompanying notes.

For and on behalf of Board of Dirvectors

For Neha Bothra & Co. of Cygnet Industries Limited
Firm Registration Number: 326938E
Chartered Accountants ‘ I N ARGl s
Kashi Prasa andelwal Sakrat Pri P-\i;ms]u
N. BOM Director Director
Neha Bothra DIN: 0748523 DIN: 06620290
Parlner

Membership No.: 067026

Deepak Kumar

Sharma Sharmila Nath
Director

DIN: 02555564

e

e ode . Kinrmaw Shasroa /X < 'VLM\J

Direciar
DIN: 07041021

Rajrnarty

s

Place: Kolkata

Date : 08.04.2024 Vineet Rai Raj Kumar Burman
Chief Exécutive Officer Chief Financial Officer
At W
Ankita Agarwal

Company Secretary




Cygnet Industries Limited
Cash flow statement for the year ended gist March, zozg

A, Cash Flow From Operating Actis
Met Profit,/{ Lees) before tax {7.86157m)
Adiustiments firs
Depreciation and amortsstion 2,161.18 2,006.54
Provisian for bad and doubtiul debls/advances and others U6y 67485
Finun wstat 407472 4,153.95
Unrealised loss/(uain) on modification of lease fuhilite c (193]
Tiossf (zain) on sale of property, plant and equiprment (net) BT 0.1
Liabilitiea/Privision ne longer regquired written back (nit) {595.951 {497.99]
Tnlerest inenme [1,504.87) {G00.75]
Operaling profit/(luss) before working eapital changes (2.576.23) {2.044.04)
Changes in Working Capital:
Tnerease f(decrease) in trade and other pasibloa [2.978.58) Bazyy
(Insrease) [ decredse in teade and othet reepivililes (4.200.55) 11,50H.00)
(Inereuse) [ decrenss i uvenloties 41014 (ra99.65)
Cash Generated from Operations
Diveet taxes paid [net of refunds] {116.83) {5.0a2)
Neteash generated/(used) in operating activities (G967, 07) {4.944.67)
B, Cash flow from Invesling Activitles:
Purchase of fixed assets/Cipital Advance given (d5u.z} {197 28)
Proeveds frunsale of property, plant and cquipment .04 .z
FIF Created [ Renewed (L393:42) -
FT Matured 110478 200
Loun to body corporate 1625 00) [2.325.00)
Repayment of Loan by body compurate 5,782,851 7460 A2
Lnterest received 2,705.35 2,316.70
Net cash gencrated /{used) in investing activities 732595 F.257.41
C. Cush flow from Financing Activities
Fimtinee cust paid {2521.04) {2,6475.38)
Puyusent of Liase obligations (58.43) (47.45)
Froceeds from
- Short term botrowings finz4.90
- Lang term horrewings JECTG
Repayment of
= Sl term borrowings (4, 002.95) (3.046.97)
- Lo term borrowings (272205} (1,985 25))
Net cash generated from financing activities (403.03) (2,408.00)
Net (deerease]fincrease in cash andeash equivalents {44.:75) (18552}
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the yeur 114.35 208 82
Less: Cash credits al the beginning ol the v = =
sted cash & privalents at the beginring of the vear 1305
Cash and cash equivalents al the end of the period 68.509
€ d Cagh Egu
Cash in hand 0.0 oz
Balunees with banks on eurrent aceount - =
Cash eredals #f Overdiadt at the end of the year 68.60 113,33
Lepasit with arigimal maturity for less than thiee menths - -
6B.60 113.35

Figisres in broviet represents outflows,
This s the Cash Flow Sttement veferred todn aur veport of even date.

& Pucludes Rs 5,06 lakhs (Currgsponding Previous Year - Rs 5.06 lukhs available fur restriclod use, The resivietions fs maiiliy an aceommt of cosis
credit acconnt and it pertains lo demand from Gout Authorizies for Jevy of interest in nutsta nidding declaralion forms.

For Neha Bothra & Co.
Firm Kegistration Numbe:
Chartered Accountants

326g38K

N Bﬂﬂm
Neha Bothra
Partner

Membership Noo: 067046

Place; Kolkata
Date : 08.04.2024

D eebak nrar sharmma

[N\ Aguwetede
i

‘_-_-__'_"—-—_ —
Kashi Prasad Khandelwa
Director
DIN: a78523

Deepak Kumar Sharma

Divector

ic q-‘_,i.r-"“- .,-0‘-’1
Ankita Agarwal

Comipany Seeretary

Satat Priva Patjoshi

Director

DIN: 06620290

An

Sharmila Nath
Director

OIN: oFoq1921

lay,
Ra] Kumar Burmarn
Chiel Finaneial Officer



Cvgnet industries Limited
Noies forming puet of finoncinl statoment s

Mote 3: Property, plant and equipeent

(Al amounts in Rupres Lakhs, anless otherwise stated)

i FRECIAT OGN
Additions Adjustiments) Aant f X Provided Adjustients Typto
Auring ihe Sold g sistMeveh, 2024 | TAprilvosy duringthe during fhe pist March. spoy
_. Near X Lt
- Frechald « 6oy - - (R R - - =
Bl 16,903.74 4204 = 16,005,784 358021 sHG2 = ER T
Flant aml Eyubprsnt abh Hghta 1,068 05 £t e hGegFe 158059 - HLI35.75
Furniture and Fivtores 1Bu.u W = 1579 1655 W - EREES
Ofier Eruipment TegH Lhg @iy F9.05 f.00 BEL b fizgz
Velileles 3dax - - Aaz 2Ry g p - 2708
57:745.86 1,113,240 xa7 5H.856.08 13.402.a4 04850 2.06 15.449.04 F 0707

 Transfor of title of the cnlive bied messuring 100762 aeres is onder process.
* Property, plntand cquipient are morteaged sgainst Toan sakon from WEBILEC, (Refer Note 13}

GROSSHIDT

Asut Additpns Adiustments/
Particiiars

Axat Tpto

April S0sx i e ‘Sold during SASK March, 20N LADE 3Gaz duriug the i g thie Fiet bl
+
L Tangible Assels: T
Tand

- Freehaold & TLO002T - = Taubbiy - - - - 1phfn.an
Bulldings iy Qa3 T 2 = 1000374 Lorahs 51156 - ABEm L3150
¥lant mid Egaipment LT GG - 26.BubRa RS K d [ TR - LRARE ] 170
Froniture iod Fistures 17904 iy - 150,09 glgz Bug - mkgH G445
fiee Equipment (.73 245 .51 FO5EH 5545 B aqg Gion 458
Yelighes Fhde - 440 0.8 405 - By 057
572410 50441 051 5745 1141z 1LGHET7 .49 1308 4434338

# "Tramsfer of ke of (i entite Land moasuring 100702 aores i= ander process
* Proporty, plant and cosiprent ane morlpaged agsind koan taken fron WBIDFT. {Rofer Note 14}

Note: g4 ight to Use Assots

TECROSS B LB ER AT COST
AsmE Adjisimen

‘Bl

asnt Adjuotiaents Yo
(st hisry 10 EAprilzoss Huzing the E i aissMpreh,
e Xea : od L

3655
| FTTET a6aE =

#4 The regastrabion of leaschold laad is in process.
5 Heelussified from Lease hold arser 10 Right-to-use anset 2 per Ind AS 16 with efieet fram tn.04 2010 (Refer nole no 37

NETBLOCR™
Agat Adjudtoneits F Anat
1 ApHl 2022 dnaring e chirringtiye : ; s1st harch,
Near
BhE g 4384 959 26443 20644 A1AF i Rty 4456
S03.01 P 47.50 A99.00 23560 45.98 a0 25438

#4 The remistration of leasehold band i in process.

3 Reclassifind from Leuse hold assnt to Right-to-use assrt na por Tad A8 116 witly effert from 1 o 200 (Relor nole e 291

MNote g: (ther intangible asscls

At Afeitions Adjasinrents/
2 Aprilaoeg faring the Epld Auring
2 2 Vear: L HieYear

Partieulars

GRONS BUOOKATOBRET 7 - - — —_— YL

A=at Tglo. i Eimite _ Asat
sl Mncch, 2osd TApHizoay ) c ZEat March 2034 | gestMarch, soug

Partivularns

{18 Properiy, plant and eguiprens plodesd ar seouring
Refer Lo nate 13 o baforation sn propenty, plant and i pledped i by sl Cmpaiy .

(i)} Cantractual nlligations .
Reder Lo note 30 [ur diseho: £ 1 i [or the wequisition of property, plont and sqoipoen




Cypmet Tinlusteies Limiled

Notes farming part of Bnanedal salements

Wil A CAPITAL- WORK IN PROGHESS 4OWIT) AGEING SCHEDULE: STANDALONE

(Al amnnsents i Ruguees Lakhs, winless otherwiss stated)

3 ;!-‘am;mim

Prisicols i prosress 21013 2770 U3 115 799 %0 188,59 194.49 10897 75885 135109
- Proects Wmpornrity iz nded 030 - 201 535 65 S5 %6 - - 407 47737 t11.44
Tatal T [ . a0 Huk. i 18959 1049 L0 ot 170343

CAPTTAL-WORE IN PROGRESS (CWIF) whiose s ariginal plan .

TR My, ey

Particulars T b conemplered n

[ Proloct 1o Progriss <iyver|
MATOR Ugg ekt OF $ ACIDSTORAGE TAN

< iyear

11 ; i

DHUTRALL & T Mant Upggraclationaug = = - 0.01 - i
Fabricaton- Upgradation-oz - - - - 1331 = 0t
PRETIA(L & TE) Prod Upgrasdation-uz) - - 4260 - g3
Caletnation mde Upgradation 4 : = = 1981 - - gl
Tl Mrr it lialing-1e - - - 58 56 S - L
Spng BOSYPRD - Upgradntion oo - - 1565 = . 1565
Upgracatinn of VAM Smnming fancolin-s : = - - - 2316 = = EARL
Vpgiratlansn of Hiat Exchanger - Spm it . - = - 015 - [
| Soimning Machind (7] Vipgrmlolinn-y. - - . - 37158 - ArLad
TP — Canting Hesud Ligs 10.05 - wrog

thers # 431 . - - 4m 2040 740 5 i 470
Toinl 1396 = = = t4.al 2q4-6 T - = 6345

# Qtfaers includes profect which cost i3 Jess than ro lakhs rupees.,

*Details of projects wheve selivity has §een swspendeod

Prniec Simpend et

TV — PAMMA Addition 509 - L]
Upgraidation of Crtallizer = 22 : 1022 . 1022 ” = 1022
TP - Tk Teimaning in upndsding 1.43 - . - 143 143 - - 143
AL ARSIRTIIN CRYSTALLIZER . 7815 - - 7813 - - 78IS - Tels
Ack] Abscrplion Crystallicer af Gy - - 30178 - A1LTE - . 3 - .
Nuw elerrinal changeover syt for s 3 - 5 = . 20404 - - 200,04
OVERHAULDTG OF 1 NUE, Lz TANKS 3 = - - - 10.51 . - - 1051
Total wdh Rigy  sonh - 59500 Za5a7 i1 785, [P §itas




Cygnet Industries Limited
Notes forming part of financial statemenls

{All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
: Investments

rrent

A. Investments carried at amortised cost:
NSC savings certificate 0.70 070
Less:-Provision for impairment in value of investment {u.70) (n.70)
B. Investments carried at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI):
Investments in Equity shares

(1) Quoted
NIL { 31 March, 2023: NIL) - _

Classified as:
Current - -
Nan-Current - =

(1) The carrying value and market value of queted and ungquoted investments are as below:
(a) Quoted
Carrving value = -
Market value - =
() Unquoted

Carrying value = o
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Cyguet Industries Limited
Notes forming part of finaneial statements

Note 12: Lguily share capital and other eguity

Note 12 (a): Equity share eapital

Authorised equily share capital

00, 00,00, 000 Equity Shaves of 1S 10 eacl
(3 March 20232 1,00,00,00,000 Equity Shores of s 10 each)

1,00,000.00 1,00, D000

1, 000, 03 0i) . O 1,00, 00000

Issued, subseribied and paid-up equity sharve o

2,05,30,870 Equity. a-s 10|:a1 !_v i np

92,653.69

92,653.60

(31 March 2023: 92,65.36,870 Eguily Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up
H92.653.69 92,653 69

Share Holding of Promoters
Share held by promolers at the end of the venr

TOTAL 022,65,36.B76 1o0%

92,65,36,876 92.65.36,876
Adil: Shares issaed dnring the period - .
N ofshares ding at the end of the period 9:2,65,56,876 92,65,30,870

Lerms and nghts attadied bo eguily shures

The Company hag equity shares having a par value of 1ts. 10 per share. ALl equity shareholders are entitled i one vate per share. ‘e Commany deelares and pays dividend in Indian rupess. The dividend
propused by te board of direetors is suliject to the approval of the sharehelders in ensuing Annual General Meeling except in the case of intedim dividend. Tn the svent of liquidatinn, the equity sharehalders
are cligible o receive the remaining assels of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in the propartion te their sharcholidings.

ol sh

the Company,

(it} Details

ares held by sharcholders holding mare than 5% of the aggregate shar

theshareholders

Kesoram Mnustries Limited

. a -B70
92,65,36.876 1005 02,05,30,876 |

Note 12 (h) : Qther Equity {All amounts in Ru

ces Lalchs, unless otherwise stated)

, AV & HEw 2 S : B 2OAT
() Ketained earnings (B5,Bo0.02) (79.532.01)
(i) Fair value through other comprehensive income . +
(IVOCI)- equity instruments
Total reserves and surplus (85.800.02) (79,532.11)

(i) Retained enrnin

. O e oAt ; : [7;93.
Nel profit/(toss) for the period (0, 7010) (7.861L.72)
Particulars
= nt of post-empl benelit obligation, nel of tax 40312 {76.80)

‘I'ransfer in equily = -
Closing balance (B5.400.02) (749.532.11)

y instruments

Oypening balance is

| Cliange in fair value of IVOCL equity instruments = &
‘Transfer in equity 4 =
Closing balance = =

Nature and purpose of other reserves
(ii7) Fair valoe threugh other comprehensive ineome (FVOUT)- equity inslromenls

“The ecumulative gaing and lasses arising on fair value clianges of squity imvest 1 2 at fair value (hrough other compreliensive income dre tecognised in WO - equity instruments reserve, The
balanee of e reserve reprosents such changes recognised net of amounts reclassified 1o retained sarnings an disposal of sueh invesiments.




Cypnet Industrios Limited
Notes formimg puet of fnamcial statements (ATl am oints in Rugess Lakls, unless othe rwise staled]

(a} Secured
Térm Loan from banks [Reler note (a) below] qrq7ge 5.530.67
Taroa Loan from Finaneial Tnstitutions [Refer note (h) balow | 17, 490.63 12 .504.50

21.5608.55 19,057.17

Lesss Curyent merturities of long term horromeings BUFI05 458275
Add: Interesi aecrmed on lang - -
18,200 80 10.474.42
Current [Refer note (o} holow]
() Seeurasd
Warking Capital Loan from banks
Fiapeas 25827

(b)Y Unsecurcd

Ehortterm Lo from bank * =
Borrowings from holding eompany (Beaning inforest) 13,524,790
LAAS A8

17,611.07 1724278

442641 2,027.85

2204038 20,270.63

20
11735
(16, 474.42)

Current borrowings (22.040.38) a6
Teilal (40.262.58)

wEr e e
Intesri pair =

[30.45) [1oH.13h
iz basan -
.o (k20080 0,362,

i R
1378,

: 4

- e R 3385 l7.982a3)
- afzgaol T oh WIAAGT
BT Fomon

{202 (13623 (it
= e (50750 .
135 (16.494.40% Ak L36.6:31.70)
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Cygnet Industries Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Note 14: Deferred tax liabilities

The balance comprsies temporary differences attributable to:

E

Deferred tax liabilities

Timing difference w.r.t Property, plant and equipment 5.285.90 5,210.0%
Others 40.49 98.18
Gross deferred tax liability 5,320.39 5:309.11
Deferred tax asscts

Unabsorbed depreciation = -
Capital loss 636.46 636.46
Business losses 4,450.39 4,407.20
Others 236.54 26545
Gross deferred tax asset 5:326.39 5.309.11
Net deferred tax liability - o




Cygoet Indusiries Limited
Notes forming parl of financial statements

wise stuted)

(AT amannts in Rupees Laklis, unless ath
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Particulars

Morcthan g
FOArS

1 21531 ey ey e

i Ot Credhings 1R 05 1 aur 84 8By
i} Prowasions - = =
liv) Bisputed Dues  MSWE . 2 ;
iheed Tl = Ol = o -

Soaploy et IS pay able bk Aafial L | iy (O
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Iote 10: Other Oupnelal Tnbifides
Particulars

qist March,zo23 st March, 2023

Current

Rutontunt & Eavnvat dupeaats Byfy

Crther Pavabdes 2By LT
2,454.07 PR

2 Kavag ik ialha) pavable to MSEME Yendo s oo aecoant of sntezest

# Other Pavaliles imeludvs suicant ol B o ou 1

Nate 16 Lense liabilities
“Particolars

A1st March. 2024 Aist Marchzoag

None Cuoer

Loase Liahildies Lbrg 2adg
hnag 2314

LCurrent

Lacane Lialiilitlen i NES .
(5 ] s65

Nute 17: Oher liabililies

15t March,zoey

gist Mprch 204

Current
Arvanee tin cuslonie s HIME P ELTR]
Slatuton iy Wy 1hes 41
Uithicin

LLESET) LT

1w STt Tty

b 1 B cpoelites? feTonestos B ations anit vt |

w Cher ae oo an
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Note 15: Proy

Non current
Pravision for Employec enefits

Privesoa fur graluih

Provisien for keave coeas howen gunfamicd) g2
Total Non-Current provisions b5
Cnrrent

Fravision for Empligec Benelils

eivasion bur gratuits

Frovagion to ave cacashuant (anfunideid ) Ll

Tirlal correal privisions 5164 10508

Wefer trmate 24 for disclosiine o coplove busfils,




Cygnet Industrics Limited
Notces forming part of financial statcments

{All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Nete 1o Revenue from aperativns

e fram eanteaels with cnstomers ¢
Sale of produets 263036 2442783
Other operating revenues f.05 um
24.640.41 24,430,000

#The entire revenue is being recorded al a pointin time.

The Company bias recugnised the llowing revenue-related contraet Bubilities

Contract linbilities - Advance from costnmers

|Toml eontract iahilitics Fo0.20 10591 I

Tl Ol L

Lract Liabilities are as follpws

T e

Comtrart Liahiliries Opening 30501 L4uy.70
Adkedi- Adidition dudng the year, exeluding meunt seengnized bz revenme

during the yvenr 491:38 165266
1255 Revenue recognised i the crment _\’t‘.avwhﬁc:h weis included i eonbeact

Leabifitics Ay 4T
Contraet Linbilities Closing 5022 F95.00

Nede 20: Other Incomc

i st WTurel 2ns

(a) Linbilities no lnnger peemived written
(b Interest inenme

back {nrt)* A95.95

= on financial instruments at amortised cost figo17
- om others 57 Laquag
(e Mizestlnneons incon 15211
[d}) Gain e investinents carrivd at fair value throwgh profit or loss = -
(&3 Profit on sale of Investmentainet) = S
&,25E.0% 163247

* Beler mote 51 l::rh:\hfil}'wmlﬂn Backon aoenunt A7 Inlerest Winver by MEME Vendors.

“Ioterest incame on others ineludes one time additional interest income received from Buston Tnduaties Ted. amnunting to Re.
126808 fakhs,

Note 21z Cost of material consumed

316t e 3

Cpening Liventory Lgaga L7
Adds Purchases 9,805,495 12368
Loss: Cloging Stock 46840 105956
10,445-79 11,2065.14

Purchase of stack-in-trade comprise :

Cast of material consumed of Traded Goods

Opening invenlury

Add: Purchases B14 .36

Less: Closing Stock 029 D.UE
a.86 .86

s wnd Siock in Trade

! g1st March 20

Opewag Stnck
~Work - i - Diacess Gub.By 56,15
- Finished Goods 1,900.77 423,71
- Stock-in-trade .o am

Tass: Chosing Stock

= Wark = in- Uraciss 7.5 fi26.87
- Finished Guomda 177510 1yuG 77 ‘
= Stocks in-trade .50 i

(38.80) {1,513.78)




Cygnet Industries Limiled
Notes forming part of financial statements

(All ampanes in Rupecs Lokhs, unless atherwise stated)

| T iacia ke

Salaries, Woges, Douus ele, GedT0n8 ALTaE
Contribution to Provident Fund LIRE haT.42
Cuontribution lo Lahour Wellare Fand 5 &
Contebution to Gratuty Fund (Refer detail below) 15137 brag1
Contribution muder Emplovees Stale Tnsuraone e Schewe 157 1970
Workmen and Staff welfare 20450 26025
G,6g1.11 G008 Ry

Dmring the vear. the Comipany recogiised an amount of Rs. Nil (2oz2-0023: T Mil ) as remuneration lo key manage fal personnel.

(1) Compensuted absences

Uy ted ah 5 cover the Company’s liabilify for sick and earned Teave, As e Company does nol have an aoconditionnl dght W deler the payment beyond 12 months the enlire amount has
ben treated as current.

(i} Defined benefit plan
) Graniiy
The Company nperates a gramity plan through the “KICM Gratuity Fund”. Tvery emplayee iz entitled to o brnefit equivatent to fifteen dogs salaey last deawn for eoel eampleted venr o service in

Tire bl thee Payment of Gratuity Avt, iy The same 1= pavable al the time of separation from the Company or retirement, whiclever is earlier. The benefits vest afler Gve years of continuwous
service,

b) Provident fimd

Provident tund fur certain ehigible emplovees is managed by the Company through the "B K. Birls Grewp of Conmpanies Provident Fund Institulion” ond “Birla Industrics Provident Fund”, in line
with the Provident Fund and Miseelluneous Provisions Act, 1952, The plan guarantees terest al the rate sotified by the Provident Fund Authirities. The contribution by the employer anid
emplovee together with the interest accumulated thereon are pavable to empiovess at the time of thei separation fvom the Company or retiventent, whichever is eurkier, The benefils vest
immedintely on rendering of the serdees by the employee.

The Compuny has an abligation to fund any shordl on the yield of the trosts o over the adming | interest sules on g annual basis. Thede admind i rates arz determined
anmuntly predaminantly considering the socfal rather than economie faetors and is masr eases the netual rerurn earned by the Company his Been higher in the past years. The actuary has provided
acvalustion for provideot fund labilitivs on tie basis of guidames ssaed by At § il based on the below provided assumptions there is no shoetfull ssat 3ust March, 2024 and
31 March, 2023 Tespeetively:

The deteils of fund and plan: peeilion are given below:
- - S

Par¥icnl
w2 ralp 5% m_m y 4 h e ol of obligation B il s s
s abzist March, 2034 19,564.49 28454
t gist Mirch, 2023 1759659 20,564.50 468,01
The plan ipssets have hicen primarily invedted in governmont seouritios.

Assumptions used in determi present value obligation of the interest rate guarantee mder the Delerministic Approact

st ¥arch;

g Paryicnlans

I wl e ” ]

Expected Rate of Retwm on Plan Assets [per annum) B.a5% Huash

The Cunpany contributed Rs. 813,53 Lakls and Rs, 527,42 Lukhs during the year eaded 3151 March, 2024 and 3151 Masch, 2023 respectively.




(iii) Balance sheet recogiition

a) Gratuily

Tl amennts reeopnised i U Dualanoe sheet and thue mevements i the aet defised beaefin obligaon e the year e s Tollines

(Al ampunts in Ropees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

MeEamaunt

Aprilzozg 2.405.07 235578 14230
Currenl sérvice vost 13141 i
Inlerest expensef{income] 174.66 1070 G.oh
Totsl amount recognised in profit or Joss 30607 {16.4.70) 141.37
Renasureiivnt

Teturn on plan assets, sxcluding Tl 10 milerest nse{ncnne) SR 8K (FHg.88]
Actuarial (gain)/loss from change in financial wsumptions 5804 ] 5899
Actuarial (gain)/loss frum unexpected experience 99,82 & 2582
Taotal ized in other prel 9.2-7!!- 5R5.88 {493.12)
Emplaver contributions premiun paid - =
Benefit puyments z - -
|3lsat March, 2024 z,893.90 3.103.30 {z209.40)

Netanionnt

o1 Ap zoon $OU5.19 1878 &
Current service cost 126,74 et 126,74
Interost exponse/ (fmenme 22474 286,07 [G1.23)
Totul amount recognised in profit or loss asLg8 (286.07} G541
Remeasurement

Returnon plan assets, cxeldizg amounts meloded ininterest expense/{income} = [185.42) 542
Actuarial (gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions [58.96) . (58.96)
Actuarial {pain)/loss from unexpeeted experience {4957 4 [49.57)
Total vecagnised in other preliensive i (108.53) (185.42) 76.80
Emplover eontributions/ promivm paid - (12,58} 13.58
FBenefit paymenis 1.653.07 1,653-07 =
315t March, 2023 2,405.07 235278 142,30
(iv) Sigrifi t estimictes: actuarial

The sigmificant acluarinl assumphions were a5 follaws:

! Particalars

= z FO0%
Suluary growth rale ERLE
Attrition vate 10 per thowsand
MR 1AM (2012-2015) ULTIMATE,

10 per thousand
TALM {2012-2014)
ULTIMATE,




(v) Sensitivity analysis (ATl amounts in Rupees Lakbs, unless otherwise stated)
The sensibivaty of the detued benefst oblization to ehanges it welghted pringipal i

I

Farticulars

THseount g 2399.70

Y change compared o hase due th seasiivite -2 A75% -pHa% 0125,
Salime prowth rte (<4 0.5%) 2003 6h a,788 47 500662

i chamge cobparal te base due o sensitivity 790 30" 4.07% g0t
Atmrition rate (<f+ 0.5%) 289433 2.803.00 2.405.35 249440
i chimge vompareid te hase due toseositivbye LT ool oo bty
Tife expeetaney ! martlity rate (- f+ 105) 280453 RN 040000 240415
5 chimge I Lt base duw th sersitiviny Lt e LXRe -0

The ubuve sensiivity anadysis is based on i chiange i an assumptioa while holding all otlver assuimplions coustant, [n praetice, s I unlikely tooceur, nod changes in some of the gsswingitons may be eireelaed, When
caleulating the sensitivity of the defined henefit ohligation to signi ‘actnarial rtioms the same methel { present valus of the defined benefit ohligation caleatatad with the projected unil eredil wethod sl e ewd of
the reporting perior) has heen applivd os when ealenlsting the defined benef Hahility recognised in the halomes sheet,

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensibvity anavsisdid not chusge compared wihe prier period.

(vi} The major calegories of pluns assets

The defined henefit plans e funded with § ies of Tnehin. The Company does not have any liberty te manage the funds provided tninspemnee campanies. This the composition of ench mijor entegory of plan
amsets has not been disclosed. .

(i) Risk exprosre
Through s defined heaefit plans the Company is expnsed to o number of risks, the moest significant of which are detatled below:
Tovestment risk:

Thie defined benefil plans e lunded witl inguranée eontpanies of Tndia, The Company does not have any Tibery m manage the finds provided 1o insunoce enmpanies,
The present value of the defined benelit plan Babilily is calealated wing adiscount rate delermined by reference to the Guvernment of India beuds. 1F the retwri o plan asset is below this sate, it will create a plan deficit

Interest risk:

A decreaze in the interest rate on planassets will increase the plan liabilly,
Life expeclancy:

The prescat value of the defined henefit plau lakii
the plan partiecipants will increase the plan Taki
Sabry growth risk:

The present value of the defined benefit plan Bability s catenlated by reference to the futuee salarivs of plan portivpants, An fnerease In the salary of the plan participants will inerense the plan Habiline.

eatenlated by reference (o (e best sstimate of the maottalily of plan participants both during and at the end of the ensplovment. Aninerease in the life expectanecy of

(i) Defined benefit Hability and employer contributions
Expected contributions to post-emplayment henefits plans for the year ending 31 March, 2024 0s Rs. MIL.
The weighted average duration of the defined benefic obligation is 9 years (31 March 2023 — 10 years),




Cyguet Industries Limited

Nates forming part of financial statements

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

LY90.77

ion on Right-o[-use assots 45.058
Amortisation of intangible assets 50.7%
z,i61ay 2,096.54
Note 25: Finance costs (All amounts in INR , unless otherwise stated)

r ch..‘mm[.. Zist March, 2023

215t M

Interest expense 4.062.26 4,208.63

Iiterest On Tease 13.92 597
Exchange differences regarded as an adjustment (o torrowing costs - -

4,070.18 $214.00

Less: Inlerest capitalised 1.45 6005

4.074.72 4:153-95

The capitalisation rate used W detérmine the amount of horrowing costs tohe capitalised is the interest rate applicable to the entity's general borrawing used
for capex, in this case it is 12%, (315t Murch, 2023:10.50%)

Consumption of Stores and Spare Parts 2,035.29 1,757.85
Rent 2.79 37.45
Repairs and Maintenance [Refer note (a) helow]
Building 4371 54.76
Plant and Machinery 762.30 Fiz.id
Others 78.58 67.45
Insuranes 54.59 66.74
Rates and Taxes qz.60 23.03
Brokerage 4.08 1,08
Packing, Carriage and $hipping 300.27 25328
Director's Fees 5.56 4.50
Commission to Selling Agents 6544 59.54
Sales Promotion 12:23 4.47
Management Services Fee 239.25 18219
Foreign earrency translation loss (net) 32,70 7.78
Debts/ Advances/ Tieposits written off 1052
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment sold/discarded (net) (huf .01
Provision for doubtful debts/advances (net) 49.63 67.85
Payment to auditor [Refer note (b) helow] 20,62 24,20
Guaraniee Commission : g4 250
Miscellaneous Expenses [Refer note (¢) below] 452,62 408 86
4.225.31 3.820.52

() Repair and Maintenanee includes:

Salaries and wages 544.03 494.60
{b) Details of auditors” remuneration and out-of-pocket expenses are as below:
As Aunditors :
Andit Fees (Including other certifieation foes) 24.20 2178
Tax Aundit Fees .43 242

() Miscellaneous expenses include the following:
Pavment to coslanditor 319 319

Note 26 A: Power and fucl

{All amounts in Rupees Lakhs,

Sist M:irch,zo:z.q_

(1) Pawer and Fuel includes consumption of stares and spares (eoal) 4,400.16 715351
(i1} Power and Fuel others 1,747.75 3965

0,153.91 8.0806.16




Cygnel Industries Limiited
Notes forming part of financial statements

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless atherwise stated)
Note 27: Income lax EXPense

This note provides an analysis of the Company’s income tax expense, shows amounts Uit are recognised directly in egnity and how the tax expense is affected by non-assessable
and non-deductible items. It also explains significant estimates made in relalion to the Company’s tax positions.

(@) Income tax expense

Current tio
Curvent tax on profits for the vear
Total current tax expense

Deferred tax
Deecrease [increase) in deferred tax assels {1727 (85.55)
(Decrease) increase in deferred tax Habilities 1797 65.55

Total deferred tax expense/(beneiit) -
Income tax expense

d the accounting profit mulliplied by tax rate

(6.761.03) {7.861.72)
Tax at the rate of 29.12% (FY 2022-23 — 29.12%) (1,068.81) (2,280.33}
Reason for differences to be documented Lelow
Tax losses for which ne deferred tax was recognised 1,60¢.50 2,208.62
Tax on permancnt differences 9.26 61,64
Exempt Income L =
Others (including difference in tax rate) 280.96 19.07

Tolal income lax expensc/ (cre-f]-ir) = 3

() Tax losscs

Unused lax losses [or which no deferred tax has been recopgnised:
Tax lnsses

Business lnss 46,492.69 42,719.19
Capital logs: Short term 11,765.10 11,705.10
Unabsorbed tax depreciation 27.723.20 25.763.30
ﬁPotemial tax benefit @ 29.12% on Business loss (FY 2022-23 @29.12%) 21,611.69 19,942.10
Patential tax benefit @ 17.472% on Capital loss short term (FY¥ 2022-03 @17.472%) 2,060.84 2.060.84

{a) Unabsorbed depreciation does niot hive any expiry peried.
(1) Business losses have an expiry ranging from 5 to 8 vears as at the reporting date,




Cyguel Tndustrics Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 28: Tarnings per shares

Particulars

() Basic
Number of equity shares uf the heginning of the vear Y2,65,56.876 4263536875
Number of equity shares at the end of the yeur 02,65.46,876 92,6516,876
Weighted mverage number of equity shares outstanding during Lhe vear {4) 92,65,36,876 92,65,46,876
Nominal value of cach equity Share (Rs.) 100 HLOG
Prafit / (Loss) for the year (Rs. in Takhs) ) (6,761.03] (7.861.73)
Earnings por share (Dasic) (Rs) (B/a) {o.72) (5.85)

(i) Diluted

Weighted averape number of equily shares oulstanding during the year 92,05,36,876 92,65.36,876
Larnings per share (Diluted) (Rs.) {o73) (u.85)

Note 29: Contingent liahilities

3ist March,zazg

B
(i} to exeise suthorities 5.50 550

(h) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts
(i) Rales, Tuxes, Duties ete. demanded by varions Authoritics 15954

159.54
(i} Others 150 1.50
(2) Income Tax matters = .
166.54 1660.54

In the opinion of the management, no provision is cansiderad necossary for the disputes mentioned above on the Zround that there arc fair chanees of successful
onteome of appeals.

Note 30: Capital and other commitments

1 aistMarch2ozs
() Capital Commitments ==
Estimated value of eontracts in capital account remaining to be oxcented 17.34 i i
[1et of advances Rs, 18,68 433 (a1st March, 2023: Rs, 5,27,600)]
17:.34 1341

Mote 31 The Company has eertain dues to su ppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 { MSMED Act'). The disclosures
pursuant to the said MSMED Act are as follows: remaining unpaid as at vear end

Parlionlars

31st March.zogg Bist March 202"
e by sup

i tnderr the DA 1ED Act and remaining unpaid

inr:ipa.l aun,_mt_ du
a5 at the year end

33782 8n4.50

Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Actand remaining .22 2938
unpaid as ar vear end

Prneipal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED acr, GoF.00 -
beyand the appointed day dusing the year

Interest patd, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to supplicrs = %
repistered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appainted day du ring the

year

Interes! paid, under Seetion 16 of MSMED Act, to supplicrs registered = =
under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the vear*

Interest due and payable owards supplists registered under MSMED = =
[ Act, for payments already made

Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier vears - -

" During the current finaneial year, the Conpamy has made payimeni o varivus MIME Vendors on aceount uf final setdlomenr. On sueh
settlement some of the vendors have waived aff interest liability, Accordingly, the eompany has reversed dabiltily on aceount of such
interest watver amounting to Bs 2ro.70 Lakhs during the financial year,




Cygnet Industries Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements

Note 32: Capital management
(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Risk management

The capital structure of the Company consists of debt, cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
which comprises issued share capital and accumulated reserves disclosed in the Statement of Changes in Equity.

The Company’s capital management objective is to achievaan optimal weighted average cost of eapital while continuing to safeguard the
Company’s ability to meet its liquidity requirements (including its commitments in respeet of capital expenditure) and repay loans as they fall due.

Note 33 : Fair value measurements

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and provides additional information on balanee sheet
items that contain financial instruments.

"The details of significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and
expenses are recognised in respect of each class of financial asset, financial lahili ty and equity instrument are disclosed in Note 2 to the financial
statements.

dotal Esir Value |
Cash and cash equivalents - = 68.60 68.60 68.60
Trade receivables - - 2,044.04 2,644.04 2,644.04
Loans = = = = =
Other financial assets - - 1,070.87 1,079.97 1,079.87
Total financial assets - - 3,792.51 3,792.51 3.792.51

Financial liabilities

Borrowings = - 40.331.18 40,331.18 40,331.18
Trade and other payables - - 5:041.50 5,041.50 5,041.50
Lease Liability - - 128 84 128.84 128.84
QOther finaneial liabilities - - 2,454.68 2.454.68 2,454.68
Total financial liabilities - - 47,956.20 47,956.20 47,956.20

Financial instruments by cate.

Total Catrying

Total Fair Value |

alue e Ui e
Cash and cash equivalents = = 113.35 113.35 113.35
Trade receivables - = 1,347.39 1,347.39 1,347.39
Loans = - 6,302.23 6,302.23 6,302.03
Other financial assets > - 850.84 850.89 850.84
Total financial assects - - §.,613.81 8,613.81 8,613.81

Financial liahilities

Borrowings - - 36,745.05 36,745.05 36,745.05
Trade and other payables - - 776,27 7.176.27 7,176.27
Lease Liability - - 46.79 46.79 46.79
Other financial liahilities - - 2,800.26 2 R00.26 2,800.26

Total financial liabilities - - 46.768.37 40,768.37 46,768.37




Cygnet Industries Limited
Notes forming part of financial stalements

(All amounts in Rupecs Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 34: Financial risk management

In the course of its business, the Company is exposed primacily to Juctuations in foreign currency exchange rites, intersst rates, equity prices, liguidity and credit risk, which may
adversely impact the fair value of its fnancial instcuments, The Company has a risk management policy which ool only eovers the foreign exchange rishks bus lso other risks
associated with the financial assets and labilities surh a8 interest rate risls and eredit risks. The risk managemont paliey is upproved by the Buird of Directars, The risk management
framewark alms to:

(i) ereate 2 stable business planning emdronment by reducing the impact of cureency and interest rate fluetuations on the Company's business plan.

(i) achieve greater predictablliny to earnings by determining the financial value of the expected earnings in advinee.

{A) Credir risk

The Company takes on exposure to eredit risk, whiclt is e risk that connterparty will defaull on its contractual obligations resulling in financial luss Lo the company. Financial assets
that patentizlly expose the Company to credit risks are lislod helow:

Trade receivables ,644,04 : 1,347.39
Othier financial assets Logg.87 85084

3.723.01 2. 198 23

Other recervables as stated above are due from the parties under normal eourse of the business and as such the Company helieves exposure Lo credit risk to be minimal,

i) Trade and other receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by the Company through estublished poliey and procedures and contral relating to eustomer credit 1isk management. Trade receivablis are non-
interest bearing and are generally carving uplo go days eredil terms. The Comparty has a detasled review mechanism of overdue customer receivibles al various levels within
organisafion to ensure proper attention and focus for realisation, Trade receivables are consisting ol a large number of customers, Where credit risk is high, domeste tade
receinvhbles are backed by security deposits. Export receivables are backed by letters of credit.

Ln determining the allowances for credil losses of rade receivables, the Company has nsed a practical expedient by computing the expecled credil loss allowanee for trads receivahles
hised on a provision matrix, The provision matrix takes into secount historieal credit luss experience and is adjusted for Torward looking information, The expecied eredit lnss
allowanes is hased on the ageing of the receivables that are due and rates used in the provision mamnix.

The Company's exposure Lo customers is diversified and there is no significant eredil exposure on aceount of any single customer as at 315t March, 2024 & 315t March, 2023

The company is making provisions on trade receivalbles based on Expeeted Credit Loss (ECL) model. The reconeiliation of BCL is as followe:

Opening balance 5-99
Charge in statement of profit and loss 49.63 35.70
Release to statement of profit and loss i =

Utilised during the year =

Balance al the end of the vear 9141 41.98




Cygnet Industries Limited
Notes forming part of financial slalements

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs,; unless otherwise stated)
(ii) Fair value hierarchy

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair
value, grouped into Level 1 to Level 3, as described below:

Quoted prices in an active market (Level 1):
This level of hierarchy includes financial assets that are measured by reference to quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Valuation techniques with ohservable inputs (Level 2):

This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabilities, measured using inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the assel or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from
prices).

Valuation technigues with significant unobservable inputs (Level 3):

This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and Habilities measured using inputs that are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part, using a valuation model based on assumptions
that are neither supported by prices from observable current market Lransactions in the same instrument nor are they based
on available market data.

T T

Particulars

Financial assets:
Investments i = = il

AR A Leveln

Financial assets:
Investments - = i £

(iii) Valuation technique used to determine fair value

(a) Investments carried at fair value are generally based on market price quotations. However in cases where quoted prices
are not available the management has involved valuation experts Lo determine the fair value of the investments. Different
valuation techniques have been used by the valuers for different investments. Equity Instruments carried at fair value through
other comprehensive income. These investments in equily instruments are not held for trading. Instead, they are held for long
term strategic purpose, The Company has chosen to designate this investments in equity instruments at FVOCI since, it
provides a more meaningful presentation.

(b) Fair value of borrowings is estimated by discounting expected future cash flows. The carrying amounts of other
horrowings with floating rate of interest are considered to be close to the fuir value.

(¢) The carrying amounts of remaining financial assets and liabilities are considered to be the same as their fair values.

(d) Management uses its best judgement in estimating the fair value of its financial instruments. However, there are inherent
limitations in any estimation technique. Therefore, for substantially all financial instruments, the fair value estimates
presented above are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that the Company could have realised or paid in sale
transaclions as of respective dates. As such, fair value of financial instruments subsequent to the reporting dates may be
different from the amounts reported at each reporting date.
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(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(B) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meel its finaneial obligations. The objective of liguidity risk management is to
maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements,

The Company has obtained fund and non-fund based working capital lines from various banks. Furthermore, the Company has dccess to funds
from othersources. The Company invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposit and in equity shares, which carry no or low market risk.

(i) Maturities of financial liahilities
The tables below analyse the proup’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for:
« all financial liabilities

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances
as the impact of discounting is not significant.

nteactual manirities of financigi lia

i fessthan 1 Vs, 2k . Emaenes Morethansz
ig st March o024 year i3 Yeris 3 5years

Years
B ik

Non-derivatives

Borrowings 22.040.38 4,355.17 74500 6,334.67 40,470.22
Lease Liability 73.25 7017 - - 143.52
Trade pavables 5.041.50 - - - 5,041.50
Other financial liabilities 2,454.568 - - - 2,454.68
Total financial linbilitics 20,600.91 6.425.94 5,735.00 6,330.67 18.100.92

Contractual maturities of financial Kabilitics 1.e5% than 1 il ermn Morethans
Bist March,zoz3 Vear L-3y b years

Non-derivatives

Borrowings 20,270.64 5:960.92 4,187.50 6,500.00 36,918.56
Lease Liability 26.46 26,10 - - 52.65
Trade payubles 776,27 - - - 7.176.27
Other finaneial liabilities 2. 800.26 - 1 - 2.8n0.26

Total financial liabilities: 30,273.63 5:9806.61 4.187.50 6,500.00 46,047.74
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Notes forming part of financial slalements

(C) Market risk

(i) Foreign currency risk

The Company deals with foreign currency loan, trade payables ete and is therefore exposed to foreign exchange risk associated with exchange rate
maovement.

The Company operates internationally and portion of the business is transacted in several currencies and cons¢quently the Company is exposed to

foreign exchange risk through its sales in overseas and purchases frum overseas suppliers in various foreign currencies. Foreign currency exchange
rale exposure is partly balanced by purchasing of geods, commoditics and services in the respective currencics.

Forcign currency risk exposure

The company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in INR (foreign eurrency amount multiplied by closing
rate}, are as follows:-

As at 315t March,2024

Financial

Trade receivables 1.2 100.08
Derivative Assel = & .
Advance receivable in cash or kind - - = 5

Financial linbilities

Trade payables s % = i

Borrowings = a 5 .

Derivative liability = 4 . 5
Net exposure to foreign currency risk 1L.20 100,08 - i
As at 31st March, 2023

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

nancial assets
Trade receivables = 2 = _
Derivative Assel. = - = i

Advance receivable in cash or kind “ = = -

Finaneial liabilities
Trade payables - " & &

Borrowings = - . %

Derivative liability = = i 2
Net exposure to foreign curreney risk - ] . = : =
Sensitivity

The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated financial instruments.

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

¥ [) » o - [l

H i [)
USD sensitivity
INR/USD appreciates by 5% (31st March, 2023 - 5%) (0.06) -
INR/USD depreciates by 5% (315t March, 2023 - 5%) 0.06 -
EUR sensitivity {
INR/EUR appreciates by 5% (315t Mareh, 2023 - 5%) B -
INR/EUR depreciates by 5% (31st March, 2023 - 5%) - -

* Holding all other variables constant
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(Al amounts in Rupees Lakbs, unless olherwise stated)
(11} Lnterest rate risk

duterest rate visk ds the risk thal the fsie valve or future cash flows of o Briancid instrument will fucuite

heganse of changes m marke) interest ates, The Cohimpany’s exposure to the visl of clinges in market
interest rates relates primarilete the Company’s lung-term debt abligations withs flouting intorest ratis.

The Company's mam inberest raee visk arses from lung-tevm burrowings with waciable e

+which expose the Cempany Uy eash flose interest rage risk. Tring dust Warch, 2024 and 315t Mareh, 209y, the
Company’s horrowings at vaviable rate wore maindy denemrinated in INR,

The Company’s fxed rte buerowings are eardied amottised cost. They

e therefore not subjeel to [nterest rate risk as defined in T AS 1o, since neither the CACTY NG diunt mor the fotuee cash uws will
Muetuate boeause of o change in markel intcrest rates,

(o} Interest rate riskh cxposure

On Financial Liabilities:

The af the Company's i ial abilities to interest rate risk is as follows:

{ulble rate Borrawings

: 45.001.H7 FeafLEe
Fixed raw bortiwings = 1395.93
[ Lotal borrowi nps S5.401.87 33.717.19

() Sensitivity
Profitar loss s senitive to higher/lower inlerest expense from harrwingsas a result of chimmnges in interest ates 45 helow:

lnu:-t r:xnsc rales — increase by n: : pnin N
Inlerest expence rites - decrease by 5o basis points (50 Tipsie
= Holdimg all other variables constant

(iii) Priee risk

(a) Exposure

The Company's exposure L squily securitios price sk arses from investments held by the Company and classified in the balsner sheet at fair value Uirough OCL To mamoge its price cisk arisiog Gon invesiments
i cquily secudtics, the Company diversiiics ils portolio, Tn peneral, thess investments are nil beld for trading purpesce,

(b) Scnsitivily

The table below summarizes the impact of inereases/derreases of the shure priees on the Company's equity

Slure price - Increase 5%
[ Share price - Thecrease 5%
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(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Note 35: Segment reporting

The Company's Chief operating decision makers viz. board of directors examine the Company's performanee as a single segment, viz, "Ravon,
Transparent paper and Chemicals business'',

a. Geographical inlormation

e

TR SREGE T = Mauﬁ,zi)}é

Total Segment Revenue Total Segment Revenue!

B ad e

Rayon, Transparent paper and Chemicals busingss
India 24,284.08 24,300.89
Other countries 347.38 126.04
Total Segment revenue 24.632.36 24.427.82

b. Two of the customers of the entity accounts for approximately 17% and 97 of the seles heing made for the vear ended 31st March, 2024 (Twe of the
customers of the entily accounts for approximalelv 24% and 139% of the sales heing made for the year ended 315l March, zo23)
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MNate 36« Belated Party Transactions

I L f
A}Halding
st Tuidwsaries | mited

B3 Post Reliremient Rene(it Plun

BE Hirla Gronp of Ciaspasies Providert Furd [nati b,
el Lachusnes Prosidens Fad Tnstitution.

SECM Gruaity Frnd

1 Others CWith whom brasaction has talen place]
ALK Trwvel and Toura Lal

Arledn Traling & Servios Lid

Bl P! Khisindcbuag)

(A} Anount of Transastions

e

Hokifng L 1056
Mouganenl Servdcs Fee Exprnse

Haliing L1525 1210
TnkiTest B

oty 1.399 71 Layrgy
Ol cvpienses theviugh resla rnen:

Holduig hag 10 e
Hupchas:

Halding

Pavminent Agingd Purchase

Tinldding,

Lt Taken

Holdimg,

Toan Rejyment

Halding i 4
Dalizrs tngs

‘Frners e Trvels Services

Cithirs 15,50 411
Prviclerit Fusned Conlrbution

st Ketirement Henefie i 142549 1T T
ity Contribution K10

Puet Reticement Benefil Plan 2 =150
Renvbarsement dannud

Dot Retrement fenefil Plan 1,653.07
tmeerent Reavivesd (et of 1T05)
Othgrs 680
Intoredt inemu
Othors LR FIRTS
Birestor Sutting lees
Dty ann =

= W




(Al amounts in Rupaes Lakhs, unless

L) Duesratiding balances atheryise stated)
= tion 0 5 5

Payuble

Fad Beteneiiont Beoraiiis Plan 1T 237 i
Parable-Loan :
Huolding 80 57 a7
Tavable Intors st {Net of THS)
Haldit AdEfnh Fura— 8y
Sl e Capitnl
Huldizg R by 2, 558 ()
Povable ¢
Teowsi B Trovels servives ) 72 1536
Reveivnble-T oo
Dthers 1o sT
Receivable-Interess (Net of THS)
Oiliers LR

*ns cortified by the management of the compary
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Note no. 37: IND AS 116, Lease Impact
Theestiumatad impaet of Ind AS 16 on the Company's financial statements as ot 1is Warch, 2esg s s follows:-

Balasce Shegts Thit Compimy hias odopted Ind A% 116 Louses effective 15t April 2010 and applied the Standasd o its leases. This has resudted in
recngnising a Right-of-use assets of Ba. 112,03 Lakhs and a corresponding ledso liability of #s 112.03 Lakhis asal 15t Apri] 2019, This bas also resulted in
ce-grouping of Leasehold Land of Rs 220,37 Lakhs under erstwhiile kease dandard to Right-of-use assets' s at st April sosg.

{All ameunts in Rupees Lakhs, inless otherwise stated)

1. Changes in the carrying value of righl of use asscts for the year ended ji1st March, zozg

asal 01-0g-2uay 200490
Additions during the yoar -
Dreletion duting the year = =
Deprodation 4.85 57.0%
Baluuer a5 at 31-0g-2024 196,11 1231

. The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at 31st Mar, 2024

Particulizs O T e T
Current Lease Liahility
Nen Current Lease Liability

3. The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended 3151 Mar, 2024:

i

Balaner as ot m-04-2023

40,74
Additions during the year 156.55
Finanee eost seerned during the period 13492
Deletions =
Payuent of lease labilities 6843
Balance as al 31-03-2024 12883
4. Expense pertaining to leases which has been identified as Short Term . 97y
5+ Expense pertaining to leases which has been identified as Low Value . NIL

6. Contractual maturities of lease liabilitics as at 51st March, 2024 on an undiscounted basis .
The table below provides details li;

the contracival mamrities of lease Tiahilities 45 at 315t Mareh, 2024 on an andiscounted basis:

Less than one year

One to thres years
‘Three wo five Years
More than five years

7. Total amount of Variable Lease Payment. 643

&, Nature of lessee's leasing aetivities

Warchouse/Olice Lease

9. Any future cash outflows to which the lessee is potentially exposed that
are nol refl 1in the t of lease liabilities.
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Note 39:- Disclosure regarding amendments in Schedule 11T
T Company de ot linet any Beaa

Irnperty vwhere @ proceeding as bien mitisted o pending against the Campany for Belding any

& Bunami prospern
by The Compansy du ut fave any transavtions with coispaies sisack off
cl Lhe Company de not haseany chagses or satisdaetion whaeh & vot 0 he registered with ROC hevond the statutors period.

d) The Company hiave no taded or oy estd

Tt eurreney or Vickual Cuireoney during the financial vear,
The Campeny have not advanesd or Inaned or Investod funds to any ather presan(s) or entily (ics), including foreign entities
(Intermediaries) with the wnderstanding thul the Intermediary shall:

£]
i directly or indirectly Jend or invest inoother persuns orentities identified in any manner whatsomer by or on hehalf of the company
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) o
4} provide any guarartee, security or the like 1o or on hebalf of fhe Ultimate Benefiviaries

[ The Company hirve nol received any fund from any persoa(s) or =itity(les], including forvign entities (Funding Barly) with the

! understanding (whether recorded in weitlng o othierwise) that the Cempany shall:

i) diveetly orindireetly lend ov invest in ather persons or entities identified in any manner whalsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party {Ghimate Beneficiaries) or
i} provide any guarantee, sceurity or the ke on bebalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

The Company bave noe any such transaction which is net recorded in the books of aceoimts that has beca surmsndered or diselased as
&l incume during the year in the tax assessiments under the Tneome Tax Agt, 1961 (such as, seareh or survey or any othier relevant provisions of
the Inenme Tax Act, 1961

h The Company bas used an aceonnting softwire far miaintaining its books of aveonnt which bas o featue of reeording andit trail {edit log)
Lacility and the same hes cperaled throughout the year for all relevant teansaclions recordod in the snftware,

Note 40:- Code on Soeial Securily, 2ozo,

i Contral Government Bas published The Code on Socal Secunty. 2020 and Indusiril Reltions Code, 2020 the Corlas™) i the Doz,
of India, infer ali. subsuming vivious existing labour wnd mdusral laws which deals with eiployees relired benefits mchuding post
emphovinent. The effeciive date of the code und the rules ure yet to b notigied. The impact of the lewiskitive chingos, i any, will be msessed
e revognised post notfication of the relevant provisions.

Note 41:- Previous years figure has been re-grompeid fre-urranged where ever necess

¥ Lo make it eomparable with current years figure.
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